
Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 4, 2021 

   
A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL: 

The Governing Board of the Laytonville Unified School District held a regular meeting in 
the District Board Room on November 4, 2021.  Board President Calvin Harwood called the 
meeting to order at 6:15 P.M.   

 
ROLL CALL: 
Trustees Present: Calvin Harwood, Elina Agnoli, Erin Gamble, and Meagen Hedley 
Administrators Present: Joan Potter, Lorre Stange and Tim 
Henry Student Representative: Mahaila Reighter 

 
B. PUBLIC INPUT re CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 
 
C.  CLOSED SESSION AGENDA: 
  

CS-1 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT     CS-1   
  (District Administrative Assistant) 
  
CS-2 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE  CS-2 
  
CS-3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR    CS-3 
  Name of Agency Negotiator: Superintendent 
  Name of Organization Representing Employee: CSEA 

 
D.  ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM CLOSED SESSION:  Board President Calvin Harwood 
announced that on Closed Session Item CS-1, Public Employee Appointment, the board voted 
unanimously to hire Breonna Bookout as the District Administrative Assistant, Cameron Cude as 
Special Education Instructional Assistant, Mikyla Auman as Preschool Assistant, Thom Harvey 
as Custodian/Grounds/Maintenance, Alyssa Craver as Middle School Boys’ Basketball Coach, 
Carissa Harlan as High School Girls’ Varsity Basketball Coach, Olivia Romo as Middle School 
Girls’ Basketball Coach, Michael Hernandez as High School Boys’ Junior Varsity Basketball 
Coach, Josh Firks as High School Boys’ Varsity Basketball Coach. No other action was taken in 
Closed Session. 

 
E. PATRIOTIC OBSERVANCE: Board President Calvin Harwood led the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the flag. 
 
F. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: 
• Motion to approve the Agenda by Elina Agnoli, seconded by Meagen Hedley, 

unanimously approved with a 4-0 vote. 
 
G. PUBLIC INPUT: None 
 
H. REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 
Superintendent’s Report: 
• Mrs. Potter began discussing COVID cases in the District. The District has had 17 cases 

since school started in August. Since the beginning of September to end of October there 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

were zero cases within the District. However, there were 5 new cases in the last 2 weeks at 
the Elementary School. All of these cases have been community spread and there has been 
zero school spread.  

• We are moving into Basketball season and the topic of whether or not students will be 
wearing masks while playing. Public Health has a mandate to wear masks during Basketball 
season. This decision is being questioned because of safety risks and a potential choking 
hazard. Public Health Doctors have been holding firm on their decision to require masks be 
worn. The County Superintendents are writing letters to Public Health to encourage no masks 
while playing as long as there is regular testing taking place. They are proposing wearing a 
mask while players are on the bench but while on the court they should be able to remove the 
mask. Students are already being tested twice a week for practices and they are also tested 
within 24 hours of game days. Mrs. Potter will look into where parents and community 
members can write letters in support of no masks while playing.  

• Vaccinations and Boosters: The FDA has now approved the COVID vaccination for ages 5 
and up. At this point they are not required but the Governor has directed Public Health to add 
it to the list of required vaccinations to enter school for 7th through 12th grade. There is an 
extensive process that Public Health has to go through to even make this a regulation. There 
will have to be a public comment period along with a variety of other steps to make it a 
regulation. The soonest this would be a requirement is July 1st, 2022. LVHC is having 
COVID vaccine clinics on Tuesdays and Fridays for parents that want their children ages 5 
and up to be vaccinated. If needed a school facility can be used to hold a vaccine clinic but 
there isn’t a need for one at this time. On Friday LVHC will be providing boosters for staff 
that are ready for them in the Elementary School.  

• There are a lot of new hires. Mrs. Potter is very excited about them and the hires from back 
in August are all doing great.  

• Facilities: After the 2nd series of rains, we are leak free. The 1st series of rains there were a lot 
of leaky roofs. Roofing contractor backed out last minute to replaces the roof over the 
summer. Pedro and the others have been repairing all of that. They are now going back and 
repairing drywall inside of office buildings where the roofs had leaked.  

• The District received some estimates on new paving of the parking lot and new playground. 
For the parking lot we will need to go through an architect. It looks like it will cost close to 
$200,000.00 for the parking lot including the sidewalks. The next step is talking to Don 
Alameida about drawing up some plans and then we will go through the permitting process. 
We are looking at a USDA Grant to help fund that and also using some of our COVID funds. 

• We just received the Educator Effectiveness Grant. It is for providing staff development for 
Classified, Certificated and Administrative positions in a variety of things. We have to have 
two board meetings so we can have the public hearing for the grant and illicit input for the 
use of the funds. A doodle poll was sent out for the special meeting date as it needs to happen 
prior to the board meeting on December 13th, 2021. The grant is about $140,000.00 and we 
have through 2026 to use it. We have a lot of different funds right now. Shannon and Mrs. 
Potter have been working on a strategic plan on using these funds and on what they can be 
used for and when. They have been doing this in conjunction with DAC and the Site Council. 

• Apptegy is our new website and phone app that will hopefully be rolled out in the next few 
weeks and will help with communication. There will be a couple of meetings with Jenna 
tomorrow to look at how everything will be migrated from the old site and how that will 
work.  

 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

The following reports were given: 
 

 
 Elementary Principal High School Principal Healthy Start 

LES/LMS Site Council LHS Site Council-None DAC-None 
Student Representative LVTA CSEA 

 

I. ACTION: CONSENT AGENDA 
• Motion to accept the Consent Agenda by Meagen Hedley, seconded by Elina Agnoli, 

unanimously approved with a 4-0 vote. 
 

J. ACTION: 
 
J.1 Students of the Month 
• Mr. Henry presented the Student of the Month for Laytonville High School for the 

month of October and had them introduce their family.  
• Motion to recognize Ruby Rosenthal as the Laytonville High School Student of the 

Month for October by Meagen Hedley, seconded by Elina Agnoli, unanimously 
approved with a 4-0 vote. 

 
J.2. Scheduling of Annual Organizational Meeting 

• Education Code Section 35143 requires the Board of Trustees to hold an annual 
organizational meeting; this traditionally occurs in December during the 
regularly scheduled Board meeting. We will elect a President and Clerk, make 
committee assignments, adopt a calendar of meeting dates for 2022, and obtain 
signatures from each Board member. 

• Motion to schedule the Board’s annual organizational meeting for Monday 
December 13, 2021 by Erin Gamble, seconded by Meagen Hedley, unanimously 
approved with a 4-0 vote. 

 
K. DISCUSSION / ACTION: 
•  
• K.1. PUBLIC HEARING: Federal Impact Aid Program, Budget, BP 1261 and AR 1261 

• LUSD is one of approximately 630 school districts that receive Federal Impact Aid 
funding.  Federal regulations including Section 8004 of the Elementary and Secondary 
Education Act and Board Policy 1261 call for an annual Public Hearing to be held in 
November to allow an opportunity for American Indian parents to discuss the 
educational programs supported by Impact Aid funds.  We have posted a Public Hearing 
Notice for 10 days, including at the Tribal Center. 

• Federal Impact Aid funding is provided to districts with tax free entities in their 
jurisdictions such as Indian reservations and military bases.  The purpose of the money 
is to offset the loss of tax revenue, to support the district’s instructional program and to 
ensure that Indian children receive educational services equal to those received by non-
Indian children.  The revenue is based on a complex formula and has ranged from 
$25,000 to $45,000 over the past 12 years.  BP and AR 1261, known as Indian Policies 
and Procedures (IPP’s), provide Indian parents with the opportunity to participate in the 
discussions related to their students’ instruction, and they provide the Board an 
opportunity to gather information concerning the American Indian community and its 
views on education. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

• The Public Hearing was Opened and the following information was shared: 
• Tribal Council recommended shortening the Parent Survey 
• Areas of Concern: Native American students are not performing as well as other 

students in Math and Language. There is a high chronic absentee rate amongst Native 
American students: 46%. 

• IPP will be brought back to the December meeting and any changes that need to be 
made will take place at that meeting. 

• Public Hearing was closed 
 
• K.2. Administrative Regulation 3231 for Impact Aid, First Reading 

• New regulation addresses requirements of Title VII Impact Aid, which provides 
assistance to districts with concentrations of children residing on lands owned by the 
federal government, including Indian lands.  Districts with children residing on Indian 
lands are mandated to adopt policy and procedures with specified components, 
including, but not limited to, consultation with Indian tribes and parents/guardians of 
students living on Indian lands in the planning and development of programs and 
activities supported by Impact Aid. 

• AR 3231 was reviewed by the Board and will be brought back to the regular meeting on 
December 13th for a final reading.  

 
• K.3. Administrative Regulation 6173.4 for Title VI Indian Education Program, First Reading 

• New regulation reflects major requirements for districts that receive federal Title VI 
Indian education funding, which supports local educational agencies, Indian tribes and 
organizations, and consortia in meeting the unique cultural, language, and educational 
needs of American Indian students and ensuring that all students meet challenging state 
academic standards. Districts receiving such funding are mandated to adopt procedures 
to ensure that the program will be operated and evaluated in consultation with, and with 
the involvement of, parents/guardians and family members of American Indian students 
and community representatives. Regulation also includes allowable expenditures of Title 
VI funds, the provision of professional development as needed, maintenance of student 
eligibility records, and distribution of program evaluation results. 

• AR 3231 was reviewed by the Board and will be brought back to the regular meeting on 
December 13th for a final reading. 

 
• K.4. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6174 for Education for English Learner, 

First Reading 
• As our number of English Learners has increased over the past few years, our Board 

Policy and Administrative Regulation 6174 need review and refinement to ensure that 
we are implementing a strong program. 

• The BP and AR 6174 will be reviewed with the District Advisory Committee, Site 
Councils, and the English Language Learner staff and then brought back to a future 
board meeting with recommendations.  

 
• K.5. Increase Rate of Pay for Substitute Teachers 

• Our Substitute teacher pay has not increased since 2008. In comparing our current sub 
pay to other school in the County. 

• Currently sub pay is: 
• $105.00/day for non-credentialed  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

• $120.00/day for credentialed 
• Mrs. Potter proposed increasing both non-credentialed and credentialed substitutes to 

$150.00/day effective immediately 
• Motion to approve increasing sub pay for credentialed and non-credentialed to 

$150.00/day by Meagen Hedley, seconded by Elina Agnoli, unanimously approved with 
a 4-0 vote 

•  
L. ITEMS BOARD MEMBERS WISH ON FUTURE AGENDAS: None 

 
M. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD: Elina said it seemed like positive things are 

happening according to the reports in this meeting regarding the students and new 
hires. Calvin said his fingers are crossed we have a good sports season. Mrs. Potter 
wanted to welcome Breonna. She starts on Monday to train for District 
Administrative Assistant. 
 

N. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

 
Motion to adjourn the meeting by Meagen Hedley, seconded by Elina Agnoli, 
unanimously approved with a 4-0 vote.  The meeting was adjourned at 7:27 PM.  The 
next regular meeting will be held on December 13, 2021. 

 
Respectfully submitted,    Adopted as Final        

December 13, 2021 
 
 

 
  

  Joan Viada Potter President of the Board 
Secretary to the Board Calvin Harwood 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
  

 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF DECEMBER 6, 2021 

 
A.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL: 
The Governing Board of the Laytonville Unified School District held a special meeting in the Board 
Room via ZOOM on December 6, 2021.  Board President Calvin Harwood called the meeting to order 
at 5:14 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
Trustees Present: Calvin Harwood, Erin Gamble, Meagen Hedley, Mat Paradis and Elina Agnoli  
Administrators Present: Joan Potter 
Student Representative:  
 
B.  PUBLIC INPUT re CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:  
 
C.  CLOSED SESSION AGENDA: 
  

CS-1 CONSIDERATION OF INTER-DISTRICT TRANSFER REQUEST,  CS-1 
 NUMBER IDT-I & J 
CS-2 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT       CS-2 

    
D.  ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM CLOSED SESSION: Board President Calvin Harwood 
announced that on Closed Session Item 1: Consideration of Inter-District Transfer Request, IDT-
I the Board voted unanimously to accept the incoming student into our school district. The Board 
also voted unanimously to accept students IDT-J transferring from LUSD to Willits Unified 
School District. Board President Calvin Harwood announced that on Closed Session Item 2: 
Public Employee Appointment, the Board voted unanimously to hire Casey O’Neill and Torrey 
Hansen for the LHS Garden Grant positions. No other action was taken in Closed Session.  
 
E.  ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: 

• Motion to approve the Agenda by Meagan Hedley, seconded by Mat Paradis, 
unanimously approved with a 5-0 vote. 

 
F.  PUBLIC INPUT: None 
 
G.  INFORMATION: 
G.1. New Superintendent Recruitment 
• Mendocino County Office of Education (MCOE) is providing funding to hire a consultant to help with 

recruiting a new Superintendent. The recruiter, Scott Mahoney, went through the projected timeline 
and what to expect in the coming months in the search for a new superintendent.   

 
H. DISCUSSION / ACTION:   
 
H.1. PUBLIC HEARING: Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 
• Laytonville USD will be receiving $134,608 to apply toward Educator Effectiveness. Funds 

are allocated on the basis of an equal amount per certificated and classified full-time 
equivalent as reported in the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 
(CALPADS) and the California Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS) for the 2020–21 
fiscal year.  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 2 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

• Funds may be expended during the 2021–22, 2022–23, 2023–24, 2024–25 and 2025–26 
fiscal years. An annual data and expenditure report will be due each year on or before 
September 30. A final data and expenditure report will be due on or before September 30, 
2026. Any funds not expended by June 30, 2026, must be returned to the California 
Department of Education (CDE). 

• The Educator Effectiveness Funds (EEF) are subject to the annual audits required by 
California Education Code (EC) Section 41020. 

• Mrs. Potter has met with District Advisory Council and asked for input from everyone. There 
are 10 different strategies for spending the money and we don’t have to spend it in all of the 
areas. We do have to spend money in one or more of the areas.  

• The plan will be brought back to the meeting on December 13, 2021 for board approval.   
 
The Public Hearing was Opened and the following information was shared: 
• Meagen Hedley said that the teachers and the staff probably know the best way to spend the money 

from the grant. 
 
H.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Motion to adjourn the meeting by Meagen Hedley, seconded by Mat Paradis, unanimously 
approved with a 5-0 vote.  The meeting was adjourned at 6:11 pm. The next regular meeting will 
be held on December 13, 2021. 
 

Respectfully submitted,     Adopted as Final  
         December 13, 2021 
 
 
_________________________________                    ___________________________ 
 Joan Viada Potter      Calvin Harwood 
        Secretary to the Board             President of the Board 
 
 
 
  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 2 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT ORDER #5 2021/22 

December 13, 2021 
 
   Employment Position     Status    Salary         Effective 

 
 

Certificated Appointment 
 
Certificated Resignation 
 
Certificated Layoff 
 
Certificated Leave of Absence 
  
Certificated Transfer                
 
Classified Appointment 
 
Classified/Confidential Appointment 
 
Classified/Confidential Resignation 
 
Classified/Confidential Reduction 
 
Classified Transfer 
 
Classified Resignation 
Harlan, Debbie                Cook              Perm.             $15.35/hour      12/7/2021 
 
Classified Termination 
  
Classified Layoff 
 
Coaching Positions 
   

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 3 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
 

 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REVOLVING CASH FUND #5 2021/22 

December 13, 2021 
 
DATE  CHECK #  PAYEE  REFERENCE  AMOUNT 
 
11/15/2021 2200   Joe Hill Computer Lab Cabinets $2,946.00 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 4 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
 
  

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
WARRANT LIST 
December 13, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 5 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

  
  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 5 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

z 
 
 
  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 5 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

 
  

 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT 

December 13, 2021 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
  

 

 

    
   

     
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 6 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

 
  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 6 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

 

  CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 6 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

  
 
 
  

  CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 6 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

 
  

  CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 6 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

 
  

  CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 6 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

 
  

  CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 6 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

 
  

  



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BUDGET TRANSFERS 

December 13, 2021 
 

  CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 7 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 7 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

BOARD ACTION ITEM K1 
 

Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
 
Subject:   Student of the Month 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
Mr. Henry and Ms. Stange will present their Students of the Month for November and have 
them introduce their families. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Recommendation: 
Recognize the Students of the Month and their families 
 
Attachments: 
None 
  

  BOARD ACTION 
Page 8 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
  

 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
BOARD ACTION ITEM K2 

 
Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Annual Organizational Meeting – Election of Officers 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
Education Code Section 35143 provides for an annual organizational meeting at which the Officers 
of the Board are elected. The Board President will conduct the annual organizational meeting 
which includes the following tasks: 
 
--Nominate and elect candidates for the offices of President and Clerk. 
 
--Nominate and elect two trustees to serve as Board representatives to the District Advisory 
Committee (DAC). 
 
--Nominate and elect one trustee to serve as Board representative to the Family Resource Center 
(Healthy Start) Board. 
 
--The Superintendent serves as Secretary to the Board as provided by contract (no action needed). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Nominate and elect a President and Clerk of the Board. 
Nominate and elect two DAC representatives. 
Nominate and elect one Family Resource Center (Healthy Start) representative. 
 
Attachments: 
None 
 

 
  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 

Page 7.4 
  BOARD ACTION 

Page 9 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

BOARD ACTION ITEM K3 
 

Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Resolution No. 618 Designation of Signatures of Members of the  

Governing Board 
 

From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
The Board must annually file with the County Superintendent of Schools the verified signatures 
of each person, including members of the Governing Board, authorized to sign orders in its 
name.  Resolution No. 618 certifies these signatures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution No. 618 for Designation of Signatures of Members of the Governing Board 
 
Attachments: 
Resolution No. 618 
Statement of Facts—Roster of Public Agencies Filing 
Signatures of Governing Board Members Document 
 

 
  

  BOARD ACTION 
Page 10 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 618 

 
 
 
On motion of Member ________________, seconded by Member _________________, the 
following resolution is adopted: 
 
 
WHEREAS The Governing Board of the LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
recognizes its obligation to maintain statutory regulations regarding Governing Boards 
(Education Code Section 42633). 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the following people are designated by their affixed 
signatures on the attached verification form as the members of the Governing Board of the 
LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT. 
 
 Calvin Harwood     Meagen Hedley  
 Erin Gamble      Mathieu Paradis 
 Elina Agnoli 
    
 
 
I, _____________________________, clerk of the Governing Board of the Laytonville Unified 
School District of Mendocino County, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full true 
and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting on December 13, 
2021.  A copy of Resolution No. 618 is on file in the office of the Board. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _____________________________ 
Date       Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  BOARD ACTION 
Page 10.1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
 
 

 
  BOARD ACTION 

Page 10.2 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

SIGNATURES OF MEMBERS 
OF THE 

GOVERNING BOARD 
OF THE 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

These signatures are required to be on file in the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. 
Education Code Section 42633. 
 
 
 
 Mathieu Paradis _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 Meagen Hedley _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 Erin Gamble  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 Calvin Harwood _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 Elina Agnoli  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 Signatures of any other person authorized to sign warrants in the name of this board: 
 
 
              Joan Potter                                            ___________________________________                                                                                                              
   Print Name     Signature 
 
   Shannon Ford                                        ____________________________________ 
   Print Name     Signature 
 
 
Verification: 
The above signatures were executed in my presence this 13th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
________________________________________     District Administrative Assistant 
  Signature         Title 
 
 

 
 
 

  BOARD ACTION 
Page 10.3 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

BOARD ACTION ITEM K4 
 

Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Approval of Timeline for Superintendent Recruitment 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
Scott Mahoney has presented us with a timeline for superintendent recruitment for your review 
and approval.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation: 
Approve the timeline for superintendent recruitment 
  
Attachments: 
Timeline for superintendent recruitment 

 
  

  BOARD ACTION 
Page 11 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

BOARD ACTION ITEM K5 
 

Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Adoption of Regular Board Meeting Dates for 2022 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 

 
The Board needs to review and adopt a calendar of regular meeting dates for 2022. A proposed 
calendar based on past practice is attached for your consideration. The meeting dates calendar can 
be revised, but it needs to be adopted this evening. We sometimes revise the calendar after the 
year gets underway for special circumstances. 
 
An updated 2021/22 Board Action Calendar (BAC) is also attached for your information.  This is 
a calendar of Board activities that we follow throughout the year and it is revised periodically to 
reflect new requirements, topics and schedule changes; the BAC was adopted in June and no action 
is needed tonight 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Recommendation: 
Adopt the proposed Calendar of Regular Board Meeting Dates for 2022 
  
Attachments: 
Proposed 2022 Calendar of Regular Meeting Dates  
2021/22 Board Action Calendar 
 

 
  BOARD ACTION 

Page 12 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING DATES: 2022 

 
January 13, 2022  Second Thursday  Holidays 
 
February 3, 2022  First Thursday  
 
February 16, 2022                 “Special Meeting”                   Superintendent candidate review  
 
February 24, 2022                   Interview Day   New superintendent 
 
February 25, 2022                   Interview Day   New superintendent 
 
March 3, 2022   First Thursday  
 
April 7, 2022   First Thursday     
 
May 5, 2022   First Thursday 
 
June 16, 2022   Third Thursday 
 
June 23, 2022   Fourth Thursday  Budget Adoption 
 
July 2022   No meeting 
 
August 4, 2022  First Thursday  
 
September 8, 2022  Second Thursday  Unaudited Actuals 
 
October 6, 2022  First Thursday   Pending Homecoming 
 
November 3, 2022  First Thursday 
 
December 12, 2022  Second Monday   First Interim Budget (between 11th  
        and 14th)  
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  BOARD ACTION 
Page 12.1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Board Action Calendar for 2021/2022 

 
August 2021  Summer School Report (information) 
 
August 2021  Summer Maintenance Projects Report (information) 
 
August 2021  Approve the Filing of a Declaration of Need for Fully    
   Qualified Educators (if needed) 
 
August 2021 4th Qtr. Williams Uniform Complaint Report (consent) 
 
August 2021  Report on Staff Dev. Program for 2021/22 
 
Aug/Sept. 2021 Upcoming Williams Site Visit in September (information) 
 
September 2021 Opening Enrollments (information) 
 
September 2021 PUBLIC HEARING:  Notification of Compliance with  
   EC 60119 (Instructional Materials) for 2021/22 
 
September 2021 RESOLUTION:  Compliance with EC 60119 following Public 

Hearing  
 
September 2021 Sports Program Update (information) 
 
September 2021 RESOLUTION: GANN Limit  
 
September 2021 Approval of Unaudited Actuals for 2020/21 
 
October 2021 1st Qtr. Williams Uniform Complaint Report (consent) 
 
November 2021 Approve Date for Annual Organizational Meeting  
 
November 2021  PUBLIC HEARING: Impact Aid-Tribal Notice, Budget, BP 1261  
 
November 2021 Biennial Nutritional & Physical Activity Quality Indicators Review 

(BP 5030)   (last reviewed November 2019)  
 
December 2021 Annual Organizational Meeting: Election of Officers  
 
December 2021 Data Dashboard 
 
December 2021 Adopt Board Annual Calendar of Meeting Dates 
 
December 2021 RESOLUTION:  Designation of Signatures of BOE 
 
December 2021 Adopt First Interim Budget Report 
 

  BOARD ACTION 
Page 12.2 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

December 2021 Annual Williams Site Visit Report by Co. Supt. (correspondence) 
 
December 2021 Approve & Certify Annual Audit Report for 2020/21 
 
January 2022 2nd Qtr. Williams Uniform Complaint Report (consent) 
 
January 2022 County Superintendent’s Williams 2nd Quarterly Report (consent) 
 
January 2022 PUBLIC HEARING: Comprehensive School Safety Plans 
 
January 2022 RESOLUTION:  Participation in Staywell Health Plan JPA 
 
February 2022 P-1 (first apportionment period) ADA Report (information) 
 
February 2022 Review & Authorize SARC Distribution  
 
February 2022 Title 1 Parent Involvement Policies 
 
March 2022  Adopt Second Interim Budget Report 
 
March 2022  Employee Appreciation Award – Notification &     
   Forms (information) 
 
March 2022  School Year Calendar(s) Adoption (every 2 years, due March 2023)  
 
March 2022  Consolidated Application Approval, Part 2 (consent) 
 
April 2022 School Level Parent Involvement Plan, Student/Parent Compact 
 
April 2022  Approve 2022 Summer School Program 
 
April 2022  Annual Review: BP 6145 – Extra & Cocurric. Activities 
 
April 2022  Annual Review:  BP & E 5132 – Dress Codes 
 
April 2022  3rd Qtr. Williams Uniform Complaint Report (consent) 
 
April 2022  RESOLUTION: Education Protection Account 
 
April 2022 Select Employee Appreciation Award Recipient (closed session) 

 
April 2022  RESOLUTIONS:  Day of the Teacher & Classified    

 Employees Week 
 
May 2022  Title VII Indian Ed. Formula Grant Application 
 
May 2022  Approve Next Year Instructional Minutes 
 

  BOARD ACTION 
Page 12.3 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

May 2022 Single School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Review and 
Revision 

 
May 2022  Present Employee Appreciation Award 
  
June 2022  Designation of CIF Representative to the League (consent) 
 
June 2022  PUBLIC HEARING: LCAP 
 
June 2022  PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed Budget for 2022/23 
 
June 2022  Adopt LCAP 
 
June 2022  Adopt Proposed 2022/23 Budget 
 
June 2022  RESOLUTION:  Appropriate the Ending Balance to a    
   Reserve Account 
 
June 2022  RESOLUTION:  Authorize County Superintendent 
   to Transfer Expenditures Between Funds 
 
June 2022  Approve Submission of Consolidated Application for    
   Funding Categorical Aid Programs Part 1 (consent) 
 
June 2022  Annual Superintendent’s Evaluation (closed session) 
 
June 2022 Admin Contract Extensions (closed session, open session for 

Superintendent Contract Ratification) 
 
June 2022 Report on Peer Assistance & Review Program (PAR) and CA 

Teacher Induction Program (CTIP) (information) 
 
June 2022  Approve Board Action Calendar for 2022/23 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  BOARD ACTION 
Page 12.4 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

Future Agenda Items 
 
August 2022 Local Biennial Review of Conflict of Interest Code, BP 2300 (Last 

reviewed August 2020) 
 
December 2022  Trustee terms expire: Calvin Harwood & Elina Agnoli - Nov. 2022 
 
April 2023  Review Auditor’s Contract (3 year contract expires June 2023) 
 
October 2023 Transportation Safety Plan (every three years--last    
   revised 2020) 
 
May 2024  Triennial Plan for Expelled Youth (Last adopted May 2021) 
 
December 2024  Trustee terms expire: Meagen, Mat & Erin – Nov. 2024 
 
May 2025 Deferred Maintenance Schedule – Revision to OPSC every five yrs. 

Or as needed 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  BOARD ACTION 
Page 12.5 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM L1 
 

Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
 
Subject: First Interim Budget Report  
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
Explanation: 
It’s time for the First Interim Budget Report.  The budget reporting process is ongoing 
throughout the year and includes: 
• June        Projected Budget for the next fiscal year 
• September     Update & disclosure of significant changes – based on the State’s adopted  

          budget   (within 45 days of State adoption)   
• October        Presentation of the Unaudited Actuals for the previous year 
• December      First Interim Budget – as of October 31: it compares the budget approved  

          in June with the latest figures 
• March        Second Interim Budget – as of January 31; includes funds received and  

         expended since the First Interim Budget 
Overview of Current Budget Situation: 
 The Governors signed budget, included from the May revision: A 5.07% (mega) COLA to the 
LCFF, 4.05% COLA to Special Education, and 1.7 % to state categorical programs.  Significant 
changes since budget adoption include increased LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grant 
funds, Spyrock School closure and a large influx of Covid related funding.  Future funds not 
currently built into the budget include; Educator Effectiveness Grant, A-G Completion 
Improvement Grant and PreK planning Grant.  .     
First Interim Budget Highlights include: 
• Revenues are up $1,621,785; LCFF increased 188,518; Federal Revenue increased 

$1,757,425 (decreases in Title I -30,287 & REAP -2,816,  increases in Covid funds-ESSER, 
Expanded learning 1,751,874); State Revenue decreased $314,812 primarily from 
Expanded Learning funds moving to Federal revenue; Local Revenue decreased $9,326 
(SPED) 

• Expenditure increases of $262,851; Salary/benefits decreased -$98,271 (Spyrock closure), 
Books/supplies increased $137,086 (Covid, curriculum, CTEIG, Title VI), Services/Op 
exp. Increased $34,036 (Covid funding) Capital Outlay increased $190,000 (CTEIG -
10,000, Covid 200,000 parking lot).  

We have a 4% economic uncertainty reserve with a 6% stabilization reserve and an addl. 7% 
(GFOA). This brings our reserves up to 17% minimum (equal to two months of average general 
fund expenditures) and recommended by the by the Government Finance Officers association.  
Prudent reserves afford districts and their governing board time to thoughtfully identify and 
implement budget adjustments over time. Inadequate reserves force districts to react quickly, 
often causing significant disruption to student programs and employees.     

 
Recommendation: 
Adopt the 2021-22 First Interim Budget Report 
 
Attachments 
First Interim Budget Report SACS 
Summary Forms 
LCFF Entitlement Details 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 13 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 13.1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 13.2 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 13.3 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM L2 
 
Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
 
Subject:   Administrative Regulation 3231 for Impact Aid, Second  

Reading/Approval 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
At our meeting on November 4, 2021, the Board reviewed the revised AR 3231 for Impact Aid. 
The revised Administrative Regulation is attached for a second reading. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Adopt Administrative Regulation 3231 for Impact Aid 
 
Attachments: 
Revised AR 3231         
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 14 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3231(a) 
 
IMPACT AID 
 
Any federal Title VII Impact Aid funds received by the district based on the concentration of 
children residing on lands owned by the federal government shall be used to support district 
programs and activities in accordance with the budget approved by the Governing Board.  Such 
expenditures may include, but are not limited to, the salaries of teachers and paraprofessionals, 
capital expenditures, instructional materials, computers and other equipment, supplemental 
instructional programs, after-school programs, Advanced Placement classes, and special 
enrichment programs. 
(cf. 0415 - Equity) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 
 
Any Impact Aid funds received for children with disabilities shall be used to provide a free 
appropriate public education to those children.  (20 USC 7703, 7703a; 34 CFR 222.53)  
 
Whenever Impact Aid funds are received based on students living on Indian lands, the 
Superintendent or designee shall consult and involve American Indian tribes and parents/guardians 
of students living on Indian lands in the planning and development of the district's general 
education program and of the policies and procedures for programs and activities supported by 
Impact Aid funding.  (20 USC 7704; 34 CFR 222.94) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
(cf. 6173.4 - Title VI Indian Education Program) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall:  (20 USC 7704; 34 CFR 222.91, 222.94)  
 
1. Disseminate relevant applications, evaluations, program plans, and information related to 

the district's education program and activities with sufficient advance notice to allow Indian 
tribes and parents/guardians of American Indian students the opportunity to review and 
make recommendations 

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
2. Afford an opportunity for tribes and parents/guardians of American Indian students to 

present their views regarding the district's educational program and activities, including an 
opportunity to make recommendations on the needs of those students and how the district 
may help those students realize the benefits of the programs and activities  
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify tribes and parents/guardians of the opportunity 
to submit comments and recommendations, considering the tribe's  
preference for method of communication. If necessary, the Superintendent or designee 
shall modify the method of and time for soliciting views to ensure the maximum 
participation of tribes and parents/guardians.   
 
 

 AR 3231(b) 
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 14.1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

IMPACT AID (continued) 
 
3. At least annually, assess the extent to which American Indian students participate on an 

equal basis with other students in the district's education program and activities by: 
 
a. Sharing relevant information with tribes and parents/guardians related to the 

participation of American Indian students in the district's education program and 
activities  

 
b. Allowing tribes and parents/guardians the opportunity and time to review and 

comment on whether American Indian students participate on an equal basis with 
non-Indian students 

 
4. At least annually, respond in writing to any comments and recommendations made by 

tribes or parents/guardians and disseminate the responses to the tribe and parents/guardians 
prior to the submission of the district’s policies and procedures to the federal Impact Aid 
program director 

 
5. Modify the district's policies and procedures as necessary based on any assessments or 

input from tribes or parents/guardians of Indian students 
 
6. Annually provide a copy of the district's policy and procedures to the affected tribe(s) 
 
The district shall annually review the district's procedures to ensure that they comply with law and 
are implemented by the district.  If the district determines that its procedures do not comply with 
law, it shall revise the policy and procedures within 90 days of its determination.  Within 30 days 
following any such revision, the district shall send a copy of the policy and procedures to the 
federal Impact Aid program director and the affected tribe(s).  (34 CFR 222.94) 
 
Records 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of any Impact Aid funds received by the 
district, including, but not limited to, data and certifications in support of funds received.  Such 
records shall be maintained for three years after completion of the activity for which the funds are 
expended and, when requested, shall be provided to the appropriate federal authority.  (20 USC 
1232f, 7703; 34 CFR 222.9-222.10) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 14.2 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 AR 3231(c) 
 
 
IMPACT AID (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232f  Records 
1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
7701-7714  Impact Aid 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
200.0-200.521 Federal uniform grant guidance 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
222.1-222.196  Impact Aid programs, especially: 
222.90-222.129  Impact Aid, special provisions for local educational agencies that claim children residing 
on Indian lands 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Impact Aid:  https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/impactaid 
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Indian Education: https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oie 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
approved:  Laytonville, California 
 

 
 

 
  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 

Page 14.3 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM L3 
 
Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
Subject:   Administrative Regulation 6173.4 for Title VI Indian Education 
    Programs, Second Reading/Approval 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
At our meeting on November 4, 2021, the Board reviewed the revised AR 6173.4 for Title VI 
Indian Education Programs. The revised Administrative Regulation is attached for a second 
reading. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Adopt Administrative Regulation 6173.4 for Indian Education Programs 
 
Attachments: 
Revised AR 6173.4 
  

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 15 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
Instruction AR 6173.4(a) 
 
TITLE VI INDIAN EDUCATION PROGRAMS 
 
With the assistance of federal Title VI funding for the education of children from federally 
recognized tribes, the district shall offer programs and activities to meet the unique cultural, 
language, and educational needs of American Indian students, as defined in 20 USC 7491. Program 
objectives and outcomes shall be based on state academic standards.  (20 USC 7424) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 0415 - Equity) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
 
In developing, implementing, and evaluating Title VI programs and activities, the Superintendent 
or designee shall consult with and involve parents/guardians and family members of American 
Indian students and other community representatives.  (20 USC 7424) 
 
The district shall establish a committee that is composed of, and selected by, parents/guardians 
and family members of American Indian students, representatives of tribes on tribal lands located 
within 50 miles of any district school that serves any children of the tribes, teachers, and, if 
appropriate, American Indian students enrolled in secondary schools in the district.  The majority 
of the committee shall be parents/guardians and family members of American Indian students.  
The committee shall participate in program development and provide written approval for the 
program.  (20 USC 7424) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
The district's Title VI program for American Indian education may include any of the following 
services and activities:  (20 USC 7425) 
 
1. Activities that support Native American language programs and Native American language 

restoration programs, which may be taught by traditional leaders 
 
2. Culturally related activities that support the district's program 
 
3. Early childhood and family programs that emphasize school readiness 
 
4. Enrichment programs that focus on problem solving and cognitive skills development and 

directly support the attainment of state academic standards 
 
5. Integrated educational services in combination with other programs that meet the needs of 

American Indian students and their families, including programs that promote 
parent/guardian involvement in school activities and increase student achievement 

 
6. Career preparation activities that enable American Indian students to participate in career 

technical education programs, including programs for mentoring and apprenticeship 
 
 
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 15.1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 AR 6173.4(b) 
TITLE VI INDIAN EDUCATION PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
7. Activities to educate individuals so as to prevent violence, suicide, and substance abuse 
 
8. The acquisition of equipment that is essential to achieve program goals 
 
9. Activities that promote the incorporation of culturally responsive teaching and learning 

strategies into the district's educational program 
 
10. Family literacy services 
 
11. Activities that recognize and support the unique cultural and educational needs of 

American Indian students, and incorporate appropriately qualified tribal elders and seniors 
 
12. Dropout prevention strategies for American Indian students 
 
13. Strategies to meet the educational needs of American Indian students in correctional 

facilities, including such strategies that support American Indian students who are 
transitioning from such facilities to schools served by the district 

 
Any federal funds received to support American Indian education programs shall be used to 
supplement, not supplant, state or local funds allocated for such purposes.  (20 USC 7424) 
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 
(cf. 3231 - Impact Aid) 
 
Program funds may be used to support a Title I schoolwide program pursuant to 20 USC 6314 if 
approved by the committee established pursuant to 20 USC 7424, provided that the schoolwide 
program is consistent with the purpose of American Indian education programs and the district's 
application identifies how the use of such funds in a schoolwide program will produce benefits to 
American Indian students that would not be achieved if not used in a schoolwide program.  (20 
USC 7424) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
 
As needed, professional development shall be provided to teachers and other school staff to assist 
them in working with American Indian students and carrying out Title VI programs.  (20 USC 
7424) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of the information establishing the status 
of each student as an American Indian student eligible for assistance through the federal American 
Indian education program.  (20 USC 7427)   
 
 
 
 
 
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 15.2 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 AR 6173.4(c) 
 
TITLE VI INDIAN EDUCATION PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall periodically assess the progress of American Indian students, 
including American Indian students who do not participate in programs funded through Title VI, 
in meeting program goals and objectives. Assessment results shall be provided to the Board, the 
committee established pursuant to 20 USC 7424, tribes whose children are served by the district, 
and the community.  (20 USC 7424) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 15.3 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 AR 6173.4(d) 
 
TITLE VI INDIAN EDUCATION PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
33380-33384  California Indian Education Centers 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6314  Title I schoolwide programs 
7401-7492  Indian education 
7701-7714  Impact Aid 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
200.0-200.521 Federal uniform grant guidance 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
222.90-222.129  Impact Aid, special provisions for local educational agencies that claim children residing 
on Indian lands 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Impact Aid:  https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/impactaid 
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Indian Education:  https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oie 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Policy  LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Adopted: Laytonville, California 
 

 
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 15.4 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM L4 
 
Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
 
Subject:   Federal Impact Aid Program, Budget, BP & AR 1261 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
The Board held a Public Hearing on November 4, 2021 to discuss the Indian Policies and 
Procedures and allow an opportunity for American Indian parents to discuss the educational 
programs supported by Impact Aid funds. There were no changes made to the Indian policies and 
Procedures.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 
Attachments: 
BP 1261 
AR 1261 
 

 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 16 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
Community Relations        BP 1261(a) 
 
IMPACT AID PROGRAMS 
 
 
Annual Impact Aid Public Hearing and Advisory Committee Formation 
 
In compliance with the requirements contained in Title I of Public Law PL-874 and Amendments 
contained in Public Law 95-561 as set forth in 34 CFR, Section 223.109, an annual meeting shall 
be held to discuss the use of impact aid funds prior to the submission of the district's application 
for Federal Impact Aid (PL-874) funds. The uses of these funds by the district shall be discussed 
at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees. When program and funding changes are to be made, 
tribal officials and parents or guardians will be encouraged to make recommendations and to 
present their views regarding the uses of the funds. Notice of the meeting shall be sent to the Tribal 
Council and all PL-874 parents or guardians 10 days prior to the date upon which the meeting is 
to be held. 
 
When specific recommendations are made as to modifications, deletions or additions to program 
or services offered to students with these funds, they shall be given serious consideration by the 
Board. All recommendations will be studied as to their impact upon personnel and other programs 
or services, and if appropriate, the Board shall appoint an advisory committee to study the issues 
involved and make a report to the Board. The advisory committee shall be composed of a 
representative cross-section of the community, including Tribal Council members and PL-874 
parents/guardians. 
 
The advisory committee's report shall be provided to the Tribal Council and the PL-874 parents or 
guardians. Any community members may attend the advisory committee sessions and shall have 
the right to comment during the meetings upon the recommendations, their effect upon personnel, 
programs, or services and upon the report of the advisory committee. The recommendations shall 
be forwarded to the Board which will deliberate and act upon them. The Board's decision regarding 
to the recommendations shall be final. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Adopted:  September 9, 2004 Laytonville, California 
Revised: September 11, 2014 
 

 
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 16.1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
Laytonville Unified School District 
Indian Policies and Procedures      AR 1261 (a)   
Impact Aid Programs  
 
It is the intent of the Laytonville Unified School District that all Indian children of school age 
have equal access to all programs, services and activities offered within the school district.  
To this end, the Laytonville Unified School District will consult with local tribal officials and 
parents of Indian children in the planning and development of Indian Policies and Procedures 
(IPPs), general education programs, and activities. These policies and procedures will be 
reviewed annually and revisions will be made within 90 days of the determination that 
requirements are not being adequately met. 

Section 1. Attestations 
The Laytonville Unified School District attests that it has established Indian Policies and 
Procedures (IPPs) as required in section 7004 of the Impact Aid law for any children claimed 
who reside on eligible Indian lands.  The IPPs have been adequately disseminated to the tribes 
and parents of children residing on eligible Indian lands. A copy of the current policies and 
procedures was attached to the FY 2021 Impact Aid application.  
The Laytonville Unified School District attests that it has provided a copy of written responses to 
comments, concerns and recommendations received from tribal leaders and parents of Indian 
children through the Indian policies and procedures consultation process and  disseminated these 
responses to tribal leaders and parents of Indian children prior to the submission of their FY 2021 
Impact Aid application. 
 

Section 2. Indian Policies and Procedures 
The following Indian policies and procedures become effective upon school board approval.  

Section 3. Policy 1: The LEA will disseminate relevant applications, 
evaluations, program plans and information related to the LEA's education 
program and activities with sufficient advance notice to allow tribes and parents of 
Indian children the opportunity to review and make recommendations. 
[34CFR222.94(a)(1)] 
 
Procedure 1: 
The Laytonville Unified School District will disseminate information and seek timely input 
regarding the following programs on its educational program (including, but not limited to): 
Title I, Part A, Title II, Part A, Title VI, Part A, subpart 1, Title VII-Impact Aid programs. 
 
The completed applications, evaluations, and program planning will be made available to 
parents of Indian children, Tribal officials, and the District Advisory Committee and a 
summary will be prepared and disseminated to the tribe via email and a summary will be 
sent home to parents of Indian children with the students ten days in advance of public 
hearings held in November and June to afford all interested parties the opportunity to review 
the documents with sufficient time to provide thoughtful input at the public meetings.  These 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 16.2 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

hearings will be publically advertised by posting in public places, including the Tribal 
Office, and on the District Webpage to allow all interested parties to attend.  In addition, 
representatives from the District will schedule meetings with the Cahto Tribe to seek input in 
October and May of each school year.  Announcements will be mailed home to the parents 
of Indian children. 
 
Parents of Indian children, tribal officials, the District Advisory Committee and any other 
interested persons can review assessment data to help develop or modify educational 
programs and services allowing for the participation of Indian students on an equal basis in 
the district. 
 
Minutes from the District Advisory Committee meetings will be posted on the District's 
website for all patrons and Tribal officials to review. This will allow for ongoing 
dissemination of information. 

Section 4. Policy (2): The Laytonville Unified School District will provide an 
opportunity for the Cahto Tribe and parents of Indian children to provide their 
views on the District's educational program and activities, including 
recommendations on the needs of their children and on how the District may help 
those children realize the benefits of the educational programs and activities. 
[34CFR222 .94(a)(2)] 
 

(i) Notify tribes and the parents of Indian children of the opportunity to submit comments 
and recommendations, considering the tribe's preference for method of communication, 
and 

(ii) Modify the method of and time for soliciting Indian views, if necessary, to ensure the 
maximum participation of tribes and parents of Indian children.  

Section 5. Procedure 2:  
In order to allow Indian parents and tribal officials to make commentary concerning  (1) 
the needs of their children and the ways in which they can assist them in realizing the 
benefits of the education programs; (2) the overall operation of the District's education 
program; and (3) the degree of parental participation allowed in the same, the Board will 
provide questionnaires to the tribal office and tribal officials will request parent input and 
recommendations in the fall and will thereafter hold an annual Board meeting where 
such commentary may be reviewed by Indian parents, Tribal officials, and the Board.  If 
participation in the survey results in a low return rate or the established meeting yield low 
participation by the parents of Indian children and tribal officials, the Laytonville Unified 
School District will re-evaluate its plan and consult with parents of Indian children and 
tribal officials on ways to improve and enhance participation in the consultation process.   
The Laytonville Unified School District may re-locate meetings or times to encourage 
participation. 
 
The District Advisory Committee of the Laytonville Unified School District will meet 
monthly for the purpose of addressing comments and concerns of parents of Indian children 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 16.3 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

regarding the District's educational programs and activities. The meeting agendas are posted 
and all meetings are open to the public allowing for tribal officials as well as parents of 
Indian children the opportunity to submit comments and recommendations for 
consideration. 
 
A school board representative is a member of the District Advisory Committee. This 
representation allows for the discussion of the needs of the students and ideas to be brought 
forward to both the Indian Education Committee as well as the School Board. 
 
At each of the monthly school board meetings, a section of time is set aside for 
communications from the public. This is a time to offer comments and suggestions 
regarding programming for Indian students.  In addition, two public hearings are scheduled 
in November and June which are specifically devoted to addressing questions regarding 
federal programs. Based upon suggestions, preferred methods of communication as well as 
ways to maximize participation from tribal officials as well as parents of Indian children 
will be seriously considered. 
 
Information will be included in student handbooks/enrollment packets regarding 
opportunities to provide input to the District. 
 
The District and District Advisory Committee representatives will schedule meetings with 
the Cahto Tribe to discuss ongoing programming goals. 
 
The District will consult with the Cahto Tribe to ascertain the tribe’s preferred method of 
communication.  The District will, to the extent possible, accommodate the tribe’s preferred 
method of communication.  

Section 6.  POLICY (3): The Laytonville Unified School District will annually 
assess the extent to which Indian children participate on an equal basis with non-
Indian children in the District's education program and activities. 
[34CFR222.94(a)(3)] 
 

(i) Share relevant information related to Indian children's participation in the LEA's 
education program and activities with tribes and parents of Indian children; and 

(ii) Allow tribes and parents of Indian children the opportunity and time to review and 
comment on whether Indian children participate on an equal basis with non-Indian 
children.  

Procedure 3:  

The Laytonville Unified School District will take the following measures to annually assess the 
extent to which Indian children participate on an equal basis with non-Indian children in the 
District's education program and activities.   

A. The Laytonville Unified School District will monitor Indian student participation in all 
academic and co-curricular activities.  

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 16.4 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

B. School district officials will review school data to assess the extent of Indian 
children’s participation in the District’s educational programs on an equal basis. 

C.  The Laytonville Unified School District will share its assessment of district funding, 
Indian student participation, related academic achievements and other related data will be 
shared with the parents of Indian children and tribal officials during Distict Advisory 
Committee meetings and meetings in October and May of each year with the Tribal 
Council 

D.  Parents of Indian children, tribal officials and other interested parties may express 
their views on participation through direct communication with the school district, at any 
school board meeting or to the District Advisory Committee. 

E.  Copies of annual reports will be provided to tribal officials. 

The Laytonville Unified School District shall annually analyze participation rates of Indian 
children compared to other children in all aspects of the educational program and school 
sponsored activities.   

The Laytonville Unified School District's Superintendent and school staff, in conjunction with 
the District Advisory Committee, will review annual survey data and comments gathered from 
families and students.  

The results of the data and its comments will be shared with all interested parties in the district.  
In addition comments and/or suggestions brought forth from these conversations will become 
part of the Committee's approved minutes.   

This data will be utilized to develop appropriate supports for various programs. 

During the public hearings in November and June, the school district will gather information 
relating to Indian children's participation in the LEA's education programs and activities. This 
information will also be made available to the parents of Indian children, tribal officials and the 
District Advisory Committee via minutes from the meetings   

If it is determined that there are gaps in Indian participation in the educational program or 
activities, the Laytonville Unified School Board in consultation with the District Advisory 
Committee and tribal officials, will modify its education program in such a way as to improve 
Indian participation. 

Section 7. POLICY (4): The Laytonville Unified School District will modify 
the IPPs if necessary, based upon the results of any assessment or input described 
in this document. [34CRF222.94(a)(4)] 
 

Procedure 4:  

The Laytonville Unified School Board will establish an ad hoc committee of Indian parents and 
Tribal officials ("the Indian/Parent Committee") to annually review the components the Indian 
Policies and Procedures to ensure that they meet federal regulatory and statutory requirements.  

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 16.5 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

The District Advisory Committee shall serve as a task force to review the meaningfulness of 
Indian input, to review the extent of opportunity for Indian input and to review the District's 
response to Indian commentary. The Committee will review the effectiveness of the District's 
methods of gathering the input of Indian parents and Tribal members; calculate the number of 
Indian suggestions which were actually implemented; permit Indian parents and Tribal officials 
to suggest more effective ways of communicating their views. If necessary, the District Advisory 
Committee shall make recommendations to the Board to modify its policies and procedures. 

The Laytonville Unified School District will hold a Board meeting to modify policies and 
procedures if the Indian/Parent committee indicates such modification is necessary. 

The Laytonville Unified School District School Board will determine which changes are 
implemented.  All changes to the Indian Policies and Procedures become effective upon approval 
by the school board.  

The Laytonville Unified School District will notify parents of Indian children, tribal officials and 
the general public of any changes to the Indian Policies and Procedures by posting at tribal 
offices and on the district Website.   

Section 8. POLICY (5) : The Laytonville Unified School District will respond 
at least annually in writing to comments and recommendations made by tribes or 
parents of Indian children, and disseminate the responses to the tribe and parents of 
Indian children prior to the submission of the IPPs by the LEA. [34CRF222 
.94(a)(5)] 
Procedure 5: 

The Laytonville Unified School District will at least annually respond in writing to comments 
and recommendations made by the District Advisory Committee, tribal officials, or parents of 
Indian children, and disseminate the responses by email to the tribe,  a summary will be sent 
home with  students to the parents of Indian children with instructions on how to obtain a full 
copy, and  by posting at tribal offices and on the District Website prior to the submission of the 
IPPs by the District to the Impact Aid Program.  
 

Section 9. POLICY (6): The Laytonville Unified School District will provide a 
copy of the IPPs annually to the affected tribe or tribes. [34CR F222.94 (a)(6)] 
 

The Laytonville Unified School District will annually provide a copy of the current 
Indian Policies and Procedures to the Cahto tribe by email, posting at tribal offices, and 
on the District Website. 

Section 10.  

Only a tribal chairman or an authorized designee for a tribe that has children attending an LEA’s 
schools may file a written complaint with the Assistant Secretary for Elementary and Secondary 
Education regarding an action pursuant to, or relevant to, Indian Policies and Procedures. 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 16.6 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
Level 1:   Level 1 is informal and may be written or verbally expressed to the 

Superintendent's designee. The objective is a quick and informal 
resolution of the concern.  

 
Level 2:  If the grievance is not resolved at Level 1, the grievant may submit the 

complaint in writing to the Superintendent of Schools. The grievance 
shall state the specific nature of the grievance, the specific resolution 
requested and must be signed by the grievant(s).  

 
 The Superintendent shall investigate and attempt to resolve the 

grievance. A written report regarding the decision of the 
Superintendent shall be sent to concerned parties within 30 days after 
receipt of the written grievance.  

 
 If the Superintendent does not satisfactorily resolve the grievance, 

either party may advance the grievance to level 3.  
 
Level 3:  A written appeal may be presented to the Superintendent for placement 

on the Board's agenda.  The Board of Trustees shall attempt to resolve 
the grievance. A written report regarding the decision of the district 
shall be sent to all concerned parties within 30 school days.  
Discussions or committee meetings on the issue may extend the 
resolution process for another 30 day period. 

 
 If the Board does not satisfactorily resolve the grievance, either party 

may advance the grievance to Level 4. 
 

Level 4:  The grievant may refer the complaint to the Secretary of the 
Department of Education. Complaint procedures are found in the 
Impact Aid Program. 

 
10. State law prohibits the Board from delegating its legal responsibility.  The Trustees retain 

final authority for the established policies, procedures and school programs affected by 
this act. 

 

Board Approval Date November 7, 2019 

Revised Date: August 9, 2018 

Reviewed: 8/9/18, 11/1/18, 12/12/19, 12/14/20, 11/4/21 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 16.7 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM L5 
 
Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
 
Subject:   Approval of Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
The Board held a Public Hearing at a Special Meeting on December 6th to discuss the Educator 
Effectiveness Block Grant. No suggestions were made regarding the grant. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 
 
Attachments: 
Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 
 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 17 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
  

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 17.1 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
  

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 17.2 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
  

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 17.3 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
  

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 17.4 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
  

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 17.5 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
  

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 17.6 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 
  



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM L6 
 
Board Meeting Date:  December 13, 2021 
 
Subject:   Elementary Parking Lot Paving and Sidewalk Project 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
While researching the parking lot project I found that the district needs to hire an architect to 
design the parking lot to meet both county and DSA requirements. The architect will take care of 
the design and procedural aspects of the project. As this project ties in with our original 
elementary project I have asked Don Alameida to prepare a proposal. The project will likely cost 
between $200,000-$300,000.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Review and approve the contract with Donald Alameida for the parking lot project 
 
Attachments: 
Contract from Don Alameida 

  BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION 
Page 18 



Laytonville Unified School District 
December 13, 2021 

 

 

 
 

 

   


	LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
	MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 4, 2021
	F. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA:
	H. REPORTS AND COMMENTS:
	I. ACTION: CONSENT AGENDA
	J. UACTION:
	K. UDISCUSSION / ACTION:
	
	 UK.1. PUBLIC HEARING: Federal Impact Aid Program, Budget, BP 1261 and AR 1261
	 LUSD is one of approximately 630 school districts that receive Federal Impact Aid funding.  Federal regulations including Section 8004 of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act and Board Policy 1261 call for an annual Public Hearing to be held i...
	 Federal Impact Aid funding is provided to districts with tax free entities in their jurisdictions such as Indian reservations and military bases.  The purpose of the money is to offset the loss of tax revenue, to support the district’s instructional...
	 The Public Hearing was Opened and the following information was shared:
	 Tribal Council recommended shortening the Parent Survey
	 Areas of Concern: Native American students are not performing as well as other students in Math and Language. There is a high chronic absentee rate amongst Native American students: 46%.
	 IPP will be brought back to the December meeting and any changes that need to be made will take place at that meeting.
	 Public Hearing was closed
	 UK.2. Administrative Regulation 3231 for Impact Aid, First Reading
	 New regulation addresses requirements of Title VII Impact Aid, which provides assistance to districts with concentrations of children residing on lands owned by the federal government, including Indian lands.  Districts with children residing on Ind...
	 AR 3231 was reviewed by the Board and will be brought back to the regular meeting on December 13PthP for a final reading.
	 UK.3. Administrative Regulation 6173.4 for Title VI Indian Education Program, First Reading
	 New regulation reflects major requirements for districts that receive federal Title VI Indian education funding, which supports local educational agencies, Indian tribes and organizations, and consortia in meeting the unique cultural, language, and ...
	 AR 3231 was reviewed by the Board and will be brought back to the regular meeting on December 13PthP for a final reading.
	 UK.4. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6174 for Education for English Learner, First Reading
	 As our number of English Learners has increased over the past few years, our Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6174 need review and refinement to ensure that we are implementing a strong program.
	 The BP and AR 6174 will be reviewed with the District Advisory Committee, Site Councils, and the English Language Learner staff and then brought back to a future board meeting with recommendations.
	 UK.5. Increase Rate of Pay for Substitute Teachers
	
	L. ITEMS BOARD MEMBERS WISH ON FUTURE AGENDAS: None
	N. ADJOURNMENT:
	Section 1. Attestations
	Section 2. Indian Policies and Procedures
	Section 3. Policy 1: The LEA will disseminate relevant applications, evaluations, program plans and information related to the LEA's education program and activities with sufficient advance notice to allow tribes and parents of Indian children the opp...
	Section 4. Policy (2): The Laytonville Unified School District will provide an opportunity for the Cahto Tribe and parents of Indian children to provide their views on the District's educational program and activities, including recommendations on the...
	Section 5. Procedure 2:
	Section 6.  POLICY (3): The Laytonville Unified School District will annually assess the extent to which Indian children participate on an equal basis with non-Indian children in the District's education program and activities. [34CFR222.94(a)(3)]
	Section 7. POLICY (4): The Laytonville Unified School District will modify the IPPs if necessary, based upon the results of any assessment or input described in this document. [34CRF222.94(a)(4)]
	Section 8. POLICY (5) : The Laytonville Unified School District will respond at least annually in writing to comments and recommendations made by tribes or parents of Indian children, and disseminate the responses to the tribe and parents of Indian ch...


